
  05-20-16 
  

 
 

 
 
 

NOTICE and AGENDA  
CITY SELECTION COMMITTEE 

6:45 P.M. Thursday, June 9, 2016 
Sunnyvale City Hall, West Conference Room 

456 West Olive Avenue, Sunnyvale, CA 
  

NOTICE OF MEETING 
  

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, pursuant to the requirement of law, that the City 
Selection Committee for Santa Clara County will meet Thursday, June 9, 2016 at 
6:45 p.m. at Sunnyvale City Hall, Sunnyvale, CA, in accordance with the 
following agenda items.  

AGENDA 
  

1. Call to Order/Roll Call  

2. Consent Calendar  
A. Draft Minutes of the meeting of April 14, 2016.  

  
3. Communication Received from: 

A. Association of Bay Area Government (ABAG) Executive Board – four 
appointments to fill terms expiring June, 2018: two Executive Board 
Members and two Alternate Executive Board Members. 
1.  Bylaws/Membership 

B. Airport Land Use Commission (ALUC) - Two appointments to fill 
terms expiring May 4, 2020: 

i. Seat to be filled by representative from a city that is adjacent to an 
airport (San Jose, Santa Clara, Mountain View, Sunnyvale, or 
Palo Alto). 

ii. At-large seat to be filled by representative from any city. 
1.  Job Description/Schedule of Meetings 

 
C. Silicon Valley Regional Operability Authority (SVRIA) Alternate – 

One Alternate Director - one elected official (from the city/town of 
Campbell, Cupertino, Los Gatos, Milpitas, Morgan Hill, Palo Alto, or 
Saratoga) to fulfill an ongoing term expiring October 2018. 

1. SVRIA Letter of March 22, 2016 
2. JPA Agreement 
3. Schedule of Meetings 

 

 



  05-20-16 
  

 
 

4. Appointments - Motions will be accepted from the floor in addition to 
consideration of submitted expressions of interest.  
 

A. ABAG 
1. Four appointments – Two Executive Board Members and two 

Alternate Executive Board Members 
a. Expressions of interest in reappointment as 

Executive Board Member received from Jim Davis 
of Sunnyvale. 

b. Expression of interest in reappointment as 
Executive Board Member received from Greg 
Scharff of Palo Alto.  

c. Expression of interest in Alternate Executive Board 
Members received Chris Clark of Mountain View. 

d. No expression of interest received for second 
Alternate Executive Board Member seat. 

B. ALUC 
1. Two appointments – One Seat to be filled by representative from a 

city that is adjacent to an airport and one At-Large Seat to be filled 
by representative from any city. 

a. Expression of interest in reappointment received 
from Glenn Hendricks of Sunnyvale. 

b. No expression of interest received in At-Large Seat. 
C. SVRIA 

1. One appointment – one Alternate Director 
a. No expression of interest received. 

 
5. Adjournment  

  
Note:  City Selection Committee rules specify that each city’s representative to 
the Committee is the city’s Mayor or his/her designee from the city’s council. 



 

     
 
 

 
 
 

 Draft Minutes 
SANTA CLARA COUNTY CITY SELECTION COMMITTEE 

Sunnyvale City Hall 
April 14, 2016 

  
The meeting of the Santa Clara County City Selection Committee was called to order at 
6:55 p.m. with City Selection Committee Chair Jim Griffith presiding. 

  
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

Present:                                 Also Present: 
Jason Baker, Campbell  
Rod Sinks, Cupertino Cat Tucker, Gilroy 
Peter Leroe-Muñoz, Gilroy  Jim Davis, Sunnyvale 
Jeannie Bruins, Los Altos  Manny Cappello, Saratoga 
Rob Rennie, Los Gatos Steve Preminger, SCC 
Jose Esteves, Milpitas Deanna Santana, Sunnyvale 
Burton Craig, Monte Sereno  
Steve Tate, Morgan Hill  
Pat Showalter, Mountain View  
Chappie Jones, San Jose  
Teresa O’Neill, Santa Clara  
Mary-Lynne Bernald, Saratoga  
Jim Griffith, Sunnyvale  
  

2.   Consent Calendar: Minutes of the meeting of March 10, 2016 was approved.  Motion (Leroe-
Muñoz)/ Second (Baker) to accept the minutes.  Motion Carried Unanimously 13:0. 
 
Ayes: Baker, Bernald, Bruins, Craig, Esteves, Griffith, Jones, Leroe-Muñoz, O’Neill, Rennie, 
           Sinks, Showalter, Tate  
No: 
Abstention:  
Absent: Scharff, Waldeck 
 

3.  Communications & Appointments:  
 
A. Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) – appointment of two elected 

officials - One Commissioner and One Alternate Commissioner – to fulfill a new four-
year term expiring May 2020.  

1. Cat Tucker of Gilroy expressed interest in reappointment as Commissioner. 
2.  Tara Martin-Milius of Sunnyvale expressed interest in appointment as 

Commissioner. 
3. Rob Rennie of Los Gatos expressed interest in appointment as Alternate 

Commissioner. 
 



Tara Martin-Milius of Sunnyvale was selected as Commissioner (9:4). 
 
Tara Martin-Milius: Baker, Bernald, Bruins, Esteves, Griffith, Jones, Rennie, 
                                 Showalter, Sinks 
                                 
Cat Tucker: Craig, Leroe-Muñoz, O’Neill, Tate 

 
 Rob Rennie of Los Gatos was unanimously appointed as Alternate Commissioner 
       (13:0). 
 
 Motion (Baker)/ Second (Jones).  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

 Ayes: Baker, Bernald, Bruins, Craig, Esteves, Griffith, Jones, Leroe-Muñoz, O’Neill, Rennie, 
         Sinks, Showalter, Tate  
No: 
Abstention:  
Absent: Scharff, Waldeck 
 
B. Silicon Valley Regional Operability Authority (SVRIA) – one elected official from 

the city/town of Campbell, Cupertino, Los Gatos, Milpitas, Morgan Hill, Palo Alto, or 
Saratoga is eligible to fulfill an ongoing term expiring October 2018. 

 
1. No expressions of interest received – this vacancy will be placed on the CSC 

Meeting Agenda of June 9, 2016. 
 
 

4.   Adjournment.   
 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:12 pm.   

 
Respectfully submitted: 
Raania Mohsen, Executive Director 

 



-1- 
ABAG Bylaws - April 23, 2009 

 

BYLAWS OF 
THE 

ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS 
As Amended April 23, 2009 

 
 

ARTICLE I.  PURPOSE 
 
 The Association of Bay Area Governments (hereinafter "Association") is hereby created as a separate 
entity established by agreement among its members pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, California 
Government Code Sections 6500, et seq. (hereinafter "Act").  The Association is organized for the purposes of 
establishing a permanent forum for discussion and study of regional and subregional problems of interest and 
concern to the counties and cities of the San Francisco Bay Area, developing policies and actions, and providing 
services and undertaking actions addressing such problems.    
 

ARTICLE II.  DEFINITIONS  
 
 A. "Agreement" means the Agreement with the Association of Bay Area Governments entered into 
under the Act by the Association Members. 
 
 B. "Association" means the Association of Bay Area Governments as established by the Agreement 
and these Bylaws. 
 
 C. "Executive Board" means the Association's President, Vice President and Immediate Past 
President and the body of representatives which meet from time to time as provided in these Bylaws to govern the 
affairs of the Association between meetings of the General Assembly. 
 
 D. "General Assembly" means the body of the delegates of the Members of the Association as set 
forth in these Bylaws. 
 
 E. City, county, or city and county members of the Association may be referred to as "Members." 
 
 F. "Delegate" means a delegate of a Member of the Association to the General Assembly, or the 
alternate acting in the delegate's absence.   
 
 G. "Representative" means a representative to the Executive Board, or the alternate acting in the 
representative's absence.   
 
 H. "Regional Plan" means the comprehensive plan for the San Francisco Bay Region adopted and 
amended from time to time by the Association. 
 
 I. "Regional Problem" means an issue concerning the public health, safety or welfare of 
substantially all of the Association's Members, a solution to which may require intergovernmental cooperation or 
assistance of the Association. 
 
 J. "Subregional Problem" means an issue concerning the public health, safety or welfare of one or 
more of the Association's Members, a solution to which may require intergovernmental cooperation or assistance of 
the Association. 
 

ARTICLE III.  MEMBERSHIP 
 
 A.  MEMBERS 
 
 (1) The counties of Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, Napa, San Mateo, Santa Clara, Solano, and 
Sonoma, the City and County of San Francisco, and within the area of such counties all cities and incorporated 



-2- 
ABAG Bylaws - April 23, 2009 

 

towns (hereinafter referred to as "cities") now existing or formed in the future are eligible for membership in the 
Association.   
 
 (2) All eligible cities and counties become Members of the Association upon execution of the 
Agreement and payment of the annual assessment and annual membership fee. 
 
 B.  COOPERATING MEMBERS 
 
 (1) Subject to the approval of the Executive Board or the Executive Director as set forth in Article 
III.B(4), any governmental entity, public agency, or non-profit organization not eligible for membership under 
Article III.A of these Bylaws may elect to join the Association as a Cooperating Member.  
  
 (2) Cooperating Members shall be entitled to attend all meetings of the General Assembly and of the 
Executive Board, but shall not be entitled to vote or participate in debate.  No Cooperating Member shall be 
considered a "contracting party" as that term is used in the Act. 
 
 (3) Cooperating Members shall be entitled to receive data, studies, planning documents, special 
services, and other written materials and services of the Association subject to policies adopted by the Executive 
Board. 
 
 (4) (a) The Executive Director of the Association may approve the admission of any 
governmental entity or public agency electing to join the Association as a Cooperating Member pursuant to this 
Article III.B. 
 
  (b) The Executive Board of the Association may approve the admission of any non-profit 
organization electing to join the Association as a Cooperating Member pursuant to this Article III.B. 
 

ARTICLE IV.  POWERS 
 
 A. GENERAL 
 
 The Association may exercise in its own name the following powers when the exercise of these powers is 
necessary to, in furtherance of, or in support of the Association, the exercise of any other powers provided for in 
these Bylaws or the Agreement, or any other authorized activity undertaken by the Association:  make and enter 
into contracts, memoranda of understanding, and other agreements; employ and appoint employees and agents; 
acquire, hold, protect, dispose of, construct, operate, and maintain real and personal property; incur debts, liabilities, 
obligations, and encumber or hypothecate real or personal property; sue and be sued; and, accept grants, gifts, 
donations, and other monies. 
 
 B. INFORMATION GATHERING 
 
 The Association may request, collect, store, correlate, transfer, and otherwise manage information and data 
in any manner necessary to, in furtherance of, or in support of the exercise of any other power under this Article or 
any other authorized activity undertaken by the Association.   
    
 C. STUDIES 
 
 The Association may perform studies to identify and/or analyze regional or subregional problems, the 
purpose and subject matter of such studies to be determined as provided in these Bylaws. 
    
 D. REGIONAL PLANNING 
 
 The Association shall have the power to perform regional or subregional planning without limitation as to 
subject matter: 
 



-3- 
ABAG Bylaws - April 23, 2009 

 

 (1) that it is eligible or authorized to do; or,  
 
 (2) that it is required to do under State or Federal authority; or, 
 
 (3) that is authorized under other provisions of these Bylaws or as a result of the Association's studies 
of regional or subregional problems. 
 
 E.  POLICIES AND ACTIONS 
 
 (1) The Association may develop and adopt policies and/or actions.  
  
 (2) The Association may advocate and otherwise act to advance its positions, studies, plans, and 
policies both within and outside the region and may accept delegations of authority from Federal, State, regional, or 
local bodies to this end. 
 
 F. INTERAGENCY COOPERATION 
 
 (1) The Association may appoint representatives, in its own name, to other agencies, Boards, 
commissions, or official bodies to which it is required or eligible to make appointments. 
 
 (2) The Association may perform and participate in governmental coordination and respond to efforts 
at such coordination. 
 
 (3) In the exercise of its powers under Article IV.F(1) and (2), the Association may request or 
transmit information or studies; exercise any voting or veto power given to it; participate in grant applications, 
administration, and disbursements; and, do any other acts necessary to or in support of the exercise of such powers. 
 
 G.  INFORMATION, SERVICES, AND ASSISTANCE 
 
 (1) The Association may provide information, assistance, services, studies, plans, recommendations, 
and reports or such other information, assistance, and services requested by specific Members or nonmembers.  
Information, services, and assistance may include, without limitation, preparing or making of grant applications on 
behalf of or in conjunction with Members, training programs for local government staff, technical assistance on 
particular projects, or review of particular projects.  The Association may provide information, assistance and 
services in conjunction with other entities and may organize and/or participate in committees, task forces, and 
subsidiary entities necessary to or in support of this or its other powers. 
 
 (2) The Association may charge reasonable fees for information, services, and assistance that it 
provides. 
 
 H. POWER TO FINANCE PROPERTY FOR MEMBERS. 
 
 The Association shall have the power to finance and acquire, by lease purchase, installment sale or other 
financing agreements, both real and personal property necessary or convenient for the operation of the Members and 
Cooperating Members, and to sell or lease such property to such members pursuant to installment sale or lease 
purchase agreements between the Association and the members acquiring such property. 
 
 I. SELF-INSURANCE POOLS 
 
 Pursuant to Government Code Sections 989-991.2 and Labor Code Section 3700, as may be amended from 
time to time, ABAG shall have the power to provide insurance for some or all of its Members through self-
insurance or the purchase of insurance, excess insurance or reinsurance against public liability, errors and 
omissions, inverse condemnation or workers' compensation; and, further, shall have such other reasonable and 
necessary powers, which are necessary or convenient to further, support or implement the self-insurance program, 



-4- 
ABAG Bylaws - April 23, 2009 

 

including without limitation, financing self-insurance reserve funds through the issuance of certificates of 
participation, or other instruments of indebtedness. 
 
 J. OTHER POWERS 
 
 The Association may exercise other reasonable and necessary powers in furtherance or support of any 
purpose of the Association or power granted by the Act, the Agreement, or the General Assembly or the Executive 
Board as provided for in these Bylaws. 
 

ARTICLE V.  RESTRICTIONS ON POWERS 
 
 Pursuant to Articles 1 and 5 of the Agreement and to the extent required by Government Code Section 
6509, the Association shall be restricted in the exercise of its powers in the same manner as the City and County of 
San Francisco is restricted in its exercise of similar powers; provided that, if the City and County of San Francisco 
shall cease to be a Member of the Association, then the Association shall be restricted in the exercise of its powers 
in the same manner as the County of Alameda. 
 

ARTICLE VI.  GENERAL ASSEMBLY 
 
 A. MEMBERSHIP 
 
 (1) Each Member city and Member county shall have one seat in the General Assembly.  San 
Francisco shall be counted as both a city and a county for purposes of membership in the General Assembly. 
 
 (2) The mayor or member of the governing body of each Member city and the chairperson of the 
board of supervisors or member of the governing body of each Member county, or their respective alternates, shall 
be delegates to the General Assembly.   
 
 (3) Each city council and board of supervisors may designate an alternate who shall be either a 
member of such body or the chief executive officer of the Member; provided that, the mayor of the City and County 
of San Francisco may designate as an alternate (a) any officer of the City and County of San Francisco who may be 
either an elected or principal appointed official of the City and County of San Francisco or (b) the chief executive 
officer of the City County of San Francisco.  
 

(4) An alternate appointed pursuant to Article VI.A(3) may act in the absence of the delegate. 
 
 
 B. MEETINGS 
 
 (1) The time, date, and location of the annual meeting of the General Assembly shall be determined 
by the Executive Board, provided it is no later than June 30. 
 
 (2) Notice of the annual meeting of the General Assembly shall be given to the delegates of each 
Member city and Member county at least thirty (30) days prior to the meeting.  An agenda for the meeting shall 
accompany the notice. 
 
 (3) Special meetings of the General Assembly may be called by the Executive Board upon its own 
motion.  A special meeting shall be called by the Executive Board upon written request of fifteen (15) Member 
cities and three (3) Member counties. 
 
 (4) Ten-day written notice of special meetings shall be given to the delegates of each Member city 
and Member county.  An agenda specifying the subject of a special meeting shall accompany the notice. 
 
 
  



-5- 
ABAG Bylaws - April 23, 2009 

 

C. POWERS AND FUNCTIONS 
 
 The powers and functions of the General Assembly shall include: 
 
 (1) Exercising as appropriate all of the powers of the Association as set forth in these Bylaws or the 
Agreement.  The General Assembly shall have the power to limit the Executive Board's exercise of any power or 
authority set aside to the Executive Board under these Bylaws. 
 
 (2) Any delegate may at any meeting of the General Assembly propose a subject or subjects for study 
by the Association.  The General Assembly may take action upon such proposals and, if requested by any delegate, 
determine whether a study will be made of the subject or subjects so proposed or may refer such subject or subjects 
to the Executive Board. 
 
 (3) Any delegate may at any meeting of the General Assembly request review by the General 
Assembly of any action of the Executive Board which has been taken between meetings of the General Assembly. 
 
 (4) The budgetary duties and responsibilities set forth in Article XI. 
 

ARTICLE VII. EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 
 A. EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 
 There shall be an Executive Board of the Association which shall be organized and shall be responsible for 
functions as hereinafter set forth:  
 
 (1) Voting Membership.  The voting membership of the Executive Board shall consist of a maximum 
of 38 voting members (representatives and ex officio members). The representative shall be either a councilmember 
of a Member city or a supervisor of a Member county of the Association, or be eligible to be Executive Board 
representative or alternate representative from the City and County of San Francisco under Article VII.A(1)(e), if 
that jurisdiction is an Association member.  Representatives to the Executive Board shall be selected as follows: 
 
  (a) Alameda County.  Two representatives of the county to be appointed by the Board of 
Supervisors; two representatives of Member cities within the county to be appointed by the mayors of Member 
cities meeting in conference, and three representatives to be appointed by the City Council of the City of Oakland. 
 
  (b) Contra Costa County.  Two representatives of the county to be appointed by the Board of 
Supervisors; two representatives of Member cities within the county to be appointed by the mayors of Member 
cities meeting in conference. 
 
  (c) Marin County.  One representative of the county to be appointed by the Board of 
Supervisors; and one representative of Member cities within the county to be appointed by the mayors of Member 
cities meeting in conference. 
 
  (d) Napa County.  One representative of the county to be appointed by the Board of 
Supervisors; and one representative of Member cities within the county to be appointed by the mayors of Member 
cities meeting in conference. 
 
  (e) San Francisco City and County.  The Mayor and one other elective officer or member of 
the Mayor’s staff of the City and County appointed by the Mayor; two representatives of the City and County 
appointed by the Board of Supervisors, and a fifth representative to be appointed alternately by the Mayor and the 
Board of Supervisors, with two-year appointments beginning in years evenly divisible by four to be made by the 
Mayor and with two-year appointments made in even-numbered years not evenly divisible by four to be made by 
the Board of Supervisors.  When such fifth representative is selected by the Mayor, the representative may be an 
elective or appointive officer or member of the Mayor’s staff of the City and County.   
 



-6- 
ABAG Bylaws - April 23, 2009 

 

  (f) San Mateo County.  Two representatives of the county to be appointed by the Board of 
Supervisors; two representatives of Member cities within the county to be appointed by the mayors of Member 
cities meeting in conference. 
 
  (g) Santa Clara County.  Two representatives of the county to be appointed by the Board of 
Supervisors; two representatives of Member cities within the county to be appointed by the mayors of Member 
cities meeting in conference, and three representatives to be appointed by the City Council of the City of San Jose. 
 
  (h) Solano County.  One representative of the county to be appointed by the Board of 
Supervisors; and one representative of Member cities within the county to be appointed by the mayors of Member 
cities meeting in conference. 
 
  (i) Sonoma County.  One representative of the county to be appointed by the Board of 
Supervisors; and one representative of Member cities within the county to be appointed by the mayors of Member 
cities meeting in conference. 
 
  (j) President, Vice President and Immediate Past President.  The President, Vice President 
and Immediate Past President of the Association shall be ex-officio voting members of the Executive Board, but 
shall not be representatives or alternates.   
 
  (k) Alternates.  Each of the appointing bodies named in Article VII.A(1)(a)-(i) may 
designate an alternate for each of their representatives to act in the representative's absence.  Appointments of 
alternates shall be made in the same manner, with the same qualifications and for the same term as representatives. 
 
 (2) Advisory Membership.  The Association shall maintain effective communication and coordination 
with agencies of the State of California and the United States of America.  To that end, the Executive Board shall 
invite, following nomination by the Association's President, such representatives of state and federal governments 
as it deems appropriate and desirable as advisory, non-voting members of the Executive Board.  Such members 
shall serve at the pleasure of the Executive Board.  No advisory member shall be considered a "contracting party" as 
that term is used in the Act.   
 
 (3) Terms of Office.  Representatives shall serve for terms of two years. Appointments of 
representatives to the Executive Board shall become effective biennially on July 1.   
 
 (4) Staggered Terms.  The terms of the representatives to the Executive Board shall be staggered so 
that the terms of approximately one-half of the representatives expire each year.  The terms of the representatives of 
the cities in the counties of Alameda, Marin, Napa, San Francisco (mayor and representative), and Santa Clara, and 
the representatives of the counties of Contra Costa, San Mateo, Solano, and Sonoma shall expire in the even-
numbered years; the terms of the representatives of the cities in the counties of Contra Costa, San Mateo, Solano, 
and Sonoma, and the representatives of the counties of Alameda, Marin, Napa, San Francisco (representatives of the 
Board of Supervisors), and Santa Clara shall expire in the odd-numbered years. 
 
 (5) Officers.  The President and the Vice President of the Association shall be Chairperson and Vice 
Chairperson, respectively, of the Executive Board. 
 
 (6) Duties.   
 
  (a) The Executive Board shall have the budgetary duties and responsibilities set forth in 
Article XI. 
 
  (b) The Executive Board shall submit a full report of its activities at the General Assembly's 
annual meeting. 
 



-7- 
ABAG Bylaws - April 23, 2009 

 

  (c) The Executive Board shall have the authority to appoint, fix the salary of, and remove an 
Executive Director of the Association and shall have the authority to create and discontinue positions in the office 
of the Executive Director and fix salaries. 
 
  (d) Subject to any constraint or limitation imposed by the General Assembly, the Executive 
Board shall exercise all powers of the Association between meetings of the General Assembly; provided that, the 
Executive Board shall not amend these Bylaws, nor shall it exercise the budgetary powers reserved to the General 
Assembly under Article XI of the these Bylaws. 
 
  (e) The Executive Board shall be responsible for carrying out policy decisions made by the 
General Assembly. 
 
  (f) Recommendations from committees for policy actions shall be made to the Executive 
Board.  Unless otherwise directed by the General Assembly, the Executive Board may take action on such 
recommendations. 
 
 (7) Per Diem.  Each voting member of the Executive Board, or of a standing and/or joint committee, 
and where expressly designated by the Executive Board, individuals participating in special committees, task forces 
or other meetings, shall receive a per diem of $150 for each meeting attended.  The per diem shall be paid for a 
maximum of forty-eight (48) meetings per year.  Per diem may also be received by a Board or committee member 
representing the Association before an agency or body of the State or Federal government.   
 
 B. MEETINGS 
 
 The Executive Board shall meet at least four times each year.  Additional meetings shall be held upon the 
call of the Chairperson or upon the call of five voting members of the Executive Board. 
 
 C. ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 
 There shall be an Administrative Committee of the Executive Board of the Association whose composition 
shall be determined by the Executive Board and which shall, subject to any constraint or limitation imposed by the 
Executive Board or the General Assembly, exercise all powers of the Executive Board between meetings of the 
Executive Board; provided that, the Administrative committee shall not: 
 
 (1) Amend the Agreement or Bylaws; 
 
 (2) Exercise the budgetary duties of the Executive Board set forth in Article XII; 
 
 (3) Appoint, fix the salary of, or remove an Executive Director of the Association; 
 
 (4) Exercise the powers of appointment of officers as set forth in Article IX. 
 
 The Administrative Committee shall meet upon the call of the President or Vice President and in 
compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act.  Further, the Administrative Committee shall submit a full report of its 
activities to the Executive Board at the first meeting immediately following the Administrative Committee meeting. 
 

ARTICLE VIII. VOTING 
 
 A. Voting in the General Assembly shall be conducted in the following manner: 
 
 (1) A quorum of the General Assembly shall consist of a majority of the city delegates and a majority 
of the county delegates. 
 
 (2) Each county delegate and each city delegate shall have one vote.  Votes shall be tabulated 
separately for county delegates and for city delegates.  The affirmative votes of a majority of a quorum of county 



-8- 
ABAG Bylaws - April 23, 2009 

 

delegates and of a majority of a quorum of city delegates are required for action by the General Assembly, except as 
provided for in Article XIV. 
 
 B. Voting in General Assembly meetings may be either by voice or roll call vote. A roll call vote 
shall be conducted upon the demand of five delegates present, or at the discretion of the presiding officer. 
 
 C. Voting in the Executive Board shall be conducted in the following manner: 
 
 (1) A majority of the voting members of the Executive Board shall constitute a quorum. 
 
 (2) The affirmative votes of a majority of the quorum are required for action by the Executive Board 
with the exceptions set out below. 
 
 (3) In order to recommend the annual budget to the General Assembly, the affirmative vote of not less 
than a majority of the voting members of the Executive Board is required. 
 
 (4) In order to appoint or remove the Executive Director, the affirmative vote of not less than a 
majority of the voting members of the Executive Board is required. 
 
 D. Except as the Executive Board may otherwise provide, all other committees of the Association 
may act upon the affirmative vote of a majority of the committee members present. 
 

ARTICLE IX. OFFICERS, ELECTIONS AND VACANCIES 
 
 A. Officers of the Association shall be: 
 
 (1) The President, who shall serve as Chairperson of the Executive Board and General Assembly. 
 
 (2) The Vice President, who shall serve as Vice Chairperson of the Executive Board and General 
Assembly. 
 
 (3) The Immediate Past President. 
 
 (4) An Executive Director and a Legal Counsel to be appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the 
Executive Board.      
 
 B. The President and Vice President of the Association shall be elected biennially by secret ballot of 
supervisors, mayors and city councilmembers of member jurisdictions. Nominations for the offices of the President 
and Vice President shall be by petition of at least fifteen (15) mayors, councilmembers or supervisors.  A plurality 
vote shall be required for election to any office.  All other election procedures shall be determined by the Executive 
Board, provided that these procedures shall be disseminated to all member jurisdictions at least thirty (30) days prior 
to the date determined and designated for counting of secret ballots.  If, at the close of nominations, only one 
candidate is nominated for President or for Vice President, the election procedures may waive the ballot 
requirement and provide, instead, that the nominee be declared elected to that office. 
 
 C. The President and Vice President shall be either a councilmember of a Member city or a 
supervisor of a Member county of the Association, or a General Assembly delegate or alternate or Executive Board 
representative or alternate representative from the City and County of San Francisco if that jurisdiction is an 
Association member.   
 
 D. The terms of office of the President and Vice President shall be determined as follows: 
 
 (1) Except as otherwise provided in this section, the term of office of the President, Vice President 
and Immediate Past President is two (2) years. 
 



-9- 
ABAG Bylaws - April 23, 2009 

 

 (2) If the President vacates his/her office as required by Article IX.C. or any other reason, the Vice 
President shall assume the office of President for the balance of the original term.  If the balance of the original term 
is less than five hundred forty-eight (548) calendar days, then the new President may choose to run for an additional 
one (1) year term as President.  The new President shall notify the Executive Board no later than September 1 of the 
year in which the original term ends whether he/she shall run for an additional one (1) year term.  The President's 
election to run for an additional one (1) year term shall also modify the term of office of the Vice President to 
conform to that of the office of the President. 
 
 (3) Article IX.B. shall govern the special elections for one (1) year terms in all other respects. 
 
 (4) In the event that the President is disabled or for any other reason temporarily unable to act, the 
Vice President shall act in place and perform the duties of President until return or recovery from disability.   
 
 (5) In the event of a vacancy in the office of Vice President due to the Vice President's permanently 
serving as President, vacating the office as required by Article IX.C., or for any other reason, the Executive Board 
shall fill the office of Vice President by appointment for the unexpired portion of the Vice President's term.  In the 
event of a simultaneous vacancy in the offices of President and Vice President due to their vacating the respective 
offices as required by Article IX.C., or any other reason, the Executive Board shall fill both offices by appointment 
for the unexpired portion of the respective terms.  In either event, the procedures of Article IX.I shall govern the 
process of filling said vacant office. 
 
 E. A newly elected President and Vice President shall take office on January 1 of the year following 
certification of the election results. 
 
 F. The President, subject to the advice and consent of the Executive Board, shall appoint committees 
and determine the committees' structure, charge, size and membership.  Committees may be established to consider 
any matter within the jurisdiction of the Association.  Committees shall operate according to the policies adopted by 
the Executive Board, and shall submit their reports and recommendations to the Executive Board.  Committees shall 
meet on the call of their chairpersons, who shall be (1) an elected official or the elective or appointive officer of the 
City and County of San Francisco appointed by the Mayor of the City and County of San Francisco to the Executive 
Board or General Assembly, and (2) a member of such committee; and who shall be elected by the members of each 
committee.  At the initial meeting of each committee, and annually thereafter at the first committee meeting 
following January 1 of each year, the committees shall elect their chairpersons and such other officers as may be 
specified. Committee chairpersons shall be subject to confirmation by the Executive Board.  Unless otherwise 
authorized by the Executive Board, committees of the Association shall be advisory.   
 
 G. Each delegate or alternate to the General Assembly and each representative or alternate to the 
Executive Board shall cease to be such immediately upon ceasing to hold the elective or appointive office which is 
required of a delegate or representative or their alternates under VI.A or VII.A(1). 
 
 H. In the event that any delegate or alternate to the General Assembly or any representative or 
alternate to the Executive Board shall for any reason cease to hold the elective or appointive office which is required 
of a delegate or representative or their alternates under Article VI.A or VII.A(1), the vacancy created thereby shall 
be filled for the unexpired term, in the same manner and with the same qualifications as the original appointment. 
 
 I. The Executive Board shall fill the office of Vice President or President pursuant to Article IX.D., 
at the first meeting of the Executive Board held after the occurrence of the event which causes the office(s) to be 
vacated.  The meeting shall be chaired by the President, or if said office is vacant, by the Immediate Past President.  
Nominations for the vacant office(s) may be made from the floor.  All nominations require a second.  The office(s) 
may be filled only if a nominee receives a majority vote of the members of the Executive Board constituting the 
quorum for that meeting.  If no nominee receives a majority vote on the first ballot, the two nominees receiving the 
highest number of votes shall be voted upon again until one of them receives a majority vote.  If the selection 
process results in a tie, or no nominee receives a majority vote after three rounds of balloting, the acting 
Chairperson of the Executive Board may, at his or her discretion, decide the matter by lot between the two nominees 
then remaining. 



-10- 
ABAG Bylaws - April 23, 2009 

 

 
 
 
 

ARTICLE X. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 
 The Executive Director shall be the Chief Administrative Officer of the Association.  The powers and 
duties of the Executive Director are: 
 
 A. To appoint and remove all employees of the Association. 
 
 B. To perform the budgetary duties and responsibilities of the Executive Director as set forth in 
Article XI. 
 
 C. To serve as Secretary-Treasurer of the Association and of the Executive Board. 
 
 D. To perform such other and additional duties as the Executive Board may require. 
 

ARTICLE XI. FINANCES 
 
 A. FISCAL YEAR   
 
 The fiscal year of the Association shall commence on July 1. 
 
 B. BUDGET 
 
 (1) At least forty-five (45) days prior to the annual meeting of the General Assembly the Executive 
Director shall submit to the Executive Board, for the next fiscal year of the Association, a proposed general budget 
and summary work program.  The proposed general budget shall include annual membership fee and assessment 
schedules and a summary of revenue and expenditures, actual or projected, for the preceding, current, and next 
fiscal years. 
 
 (2) The Executive Board shall review the proposed general budget and summary work program, 
amend them as necessary, and submit them to the General Assembly for review and adoption at the annual meeting 
of the Assembly. 
 
 (3) The General Assembly shall adopt a summary work plan and general budget, including yearly 
membership assessment and annual membership fee.  
 
 (4) The Executive Board shall adopt a detailed budget and work program on or before July 1 of each 
year, and thereafter monitor their execution and amend them as necessary.  The work program shall give effect to 
any priorities set forth in the general budget and summary work program, unless financially infeasible. 
 
 (5) The Executive Director shall manage all expenditures, subject to control of the Executive Board.  
The Executive Board shall have power to transfer funds within the total detailed budget to meet unanticipated needs 
or changed situations.  Such action shall be reported to the General Assembly at its next meeting. 
 
 C. YEARLY MEMBERSHIP ASSESSMENT   
 
 The amount of each Member's assessment shall be determined in accordance with the formula set out in 
Paragraph D following.  Any Member city or county whose annual assessment and annual membership fee has not 
been paid by the time of the annual meeting of the General Assembly shall not be entitled to vote at such meeting. 
 
 D. METHOD OF ASSESSMENT 
 



-11- 
ABAG Bylaws - April 23, 2009 

 

 The annual assessment for members of the Association shall be based upon population as determined by 
the State Controller in making the most recent allocations to counties and cities pursuant to California Revenue and 
Taxation Code Section 11005, except that, beginning in 1987-88, in the case of newly incorporated cities, until such 
time as an official census is conducted and population is established therewith, the population as estimated by the 
Executive Director shall be used for assessment purposes. 
 
 (1) The General Assembly shall adopt a per capita rate or rates of assessment for each fiscal year. 
 
 (2) For purposes of assessment San Francisco shall be considered as both a city and a county. 
 
 E. ANNUAL AUDIT 
 
 The Executive Board shall cause an annual audit of the financial affairs of the Association to be made by a 
certified public accountant at the end of each fiscal year. The Executive Board shall employ a certified public 
accountant of its choosing.  The audit report shall be made available to Association member counties and cities. 
 
 F. ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP FEE 
 
 The membership fee shall be uniform for all members of the Association and shall not be less than $10.00 
per month or $120.00 per year. 
 
 G. DATE OF PAYMENT 
 
 Unless a Member has withdrawn as provided in Article XIII of these Bylaws, the Member's annual 
assessment and annual membership fee shall be due and payable to the Association on July 1 of the fiscal year for 
which it is levied.  
 

ARTICLE XII.  STATUTORY AUTHORITY 
 
 The Association is an agency established by a joint powers agreement among the Members pursuant to 
Title 1, Division 7, Chapter 5, of the Government Code of the State of California.  The Association is an entity 
separate and apart from its Members.  The debts, liabilities and obligations of the Association shall not be debts, 
liabilities or obligations of the Association's Members. 
 

ARTICLE XIII.  WITHDRAWAL 
 
 Any member county or city may, at any time up to 30 days prior to the beginning of the Association's fiscal 
year, withdraw from the Association effective the next fiscal year; provided that the intent to withdraw must be 
stated in the form of a resolution executed by the legislative body of the jurisdiction wishing to withdraw.  The 
resolution must be given to the Executive Director at least 30 days prior to the effective date of the withdrawal. 
 

ARTICLE XIV.  AMENDMENTS 
 
 Amendments to these Bylaws may be proposed by a delegate or by the Executive Board.  If proposed by a 
delegate, the amendment shall be submitted to the Executive Board at least 45 days prior to an annual meeting of the 
General Assembly.  Each proposed amendment shall be considered by the Executive Board and a copy thereof, with 
the recommendations of the Executive Board and its reasons therefor, forwarded to the delegate of each Member 
jurisdiction at least 30 days prior to the meeting at which such proposed amendment will be voted upon. 
 
 A majority vote of the county delegates present and a majority vote of the city delegates present are 
required to adopt an amendment to these Bylaws.  If within 60 days after the adoption of any amendment, one-third 
or more of the delegates protest such amendment, it shall automatically be up for reconsideration and vote as in the 
first instance. 
 

ARTICLE XV. EFFECTIVE DATE 



-12- 
ABAG Bylaws - April 23, 2009 

 

 
 These Bylaws shall go into effect immediately upon the effective date of the Agreement. 
 



AIRPORT LAND USE COMMISSION* 

------------ 

Editor's note--Section 1 of Ord. No. 300.362.1, adopted Mar. 
6, 1984, changed the title of Ch. XV from "Airport Land Use 
Advisory Commission" to "Airport Land Use Commission." 

------------ 

Sec. A6-190. Establishment. 

The Santa Clara County Airport Land Use Commission is 
hereby established pursuant to Public Utilities Code § 21670 
as amended September 19, 1994, which mandates in 
Section 2 (for all counties with an airport served by a 
scheduled airline) that the County Board of Supervisors 
establish an airport land use commission. 

(Ord. No. NS-300.362, § 2, 11-23-82; Ord. No. NS-
300.362.1, § 2, 3-6-84; Ord. No. NS-300.582, § I, 12-12-
95) 

Sec. A6-191. Powers and duties. 

The Commission shall assume the powers and duties 
authorized by Public Utilities Code Division 9, Part 1, Chapter 
4, Article 3.5 (Public Utilities Code § 21670 et seq.). 

(Ord. No. NS-300.362, § 2, 11-23-82; Ord. No. NS-
300.362.1, § 3, 3-6-84; Ord. No. NS-300.582, § II, 12-12-
95) 

 

 

 



Sec. A6-192. Membership. 

(a) Composition of the Airport Land Use Commission. The 
membership of the Commission shall consist of seven 
members to be selected as follows: 

(1) Two to be appointed by the cities selection committee, 
one of whom must represent a city adjacent to an airport. 

(2) Two representing the County, appointed by the Board of 
Supervisors. 

(3) Two having expertise in aviation, appointed by a 
committee comprised of the aviation director of the San Jose 
International Airport and the Director of the County Roads 
and Airports Department. 

(4) One representing the general public to be selected by 
the other six members of the Commission. 

(b) Qualifications of appointees to the Airport Land Use 
Commission. 

(1) Appointees may be elected or appointed officials, public 
employees or members of the public who would be 
considered eligible for appointment to County commissions. 

(2) An individual having "expertise in aviation" is one who by 
virtue of education, training, experience, vocation or 
avocation has acquired and possesses particular knowledge 
of and is familiar with the operation, function and role of 
airports or is an elected official of an agency which owns or 
operates an airport. 

 

 



(c) Proxy representation. 

(1) All members upon appointment and taking the oath shall 
appoint a single proxy who shall take the oath of office and 
file conflict of interest reports with the Clerk of the Board. 
These proxy members will represent the sitting member in 
all affairs of the Commission and exercise the vote of the 
member at meetings when so directed by the appointing 
member. 

(2) Proxies shall be designated by a written instrument kept 
on file with the Clerk of the Board and the administrative 
staff of the Commission. Proxies serve at the pleasure of the 
appointing member and meet the basic qualifications 
required for appointment to County commissions. A vacancy 
in the office of proxy shall be filled promptly by appointment 
of a new proxy. 

(d) Reimbursement. 

(1) Members and proxies are entitled to standard mileage 
reimbursement when on business authorized by the 
Commission through its officers. 

(2) Members will be reimbursed for travel expenses when 
trips are approved by the Board of Supervisors. 

(3) Other expenses may be covered as provided in by-laws 
approved by the Board of Supervisors. 

(Ord. No. NS-300.362, § 2, 11-23-82; Ord. No. NS-
300.362.1, § 4, 3-6-84; Ord. No. NS-300.582, § III, 12-12-
95; Ord. No. NS-300.663, § 1, 8-13-02; Ord. No. NS-
300.752, 12-12-06) 

 

 



 

Sec. A6-193. Term of office. 

The term of office of the members shall be four years and 
until the appointment and qualification of his or her 
successor. Members shall serve staggered terms so that no 
more than two members' terms shall lapse in the same year. 
The body which originally appointed a member whose term 
has expired shall appoint his or her successor for a full term 
of four years. 

Any member may be removed at any time and without 
cause by the body appointing that member. Any vacancy in 
the membership of the Commission shall be filled for the 
unexpired term by appointment by the body which originally 
appointed the member whose office has become vacant. The 
chairperson of the Commission shall be selected by the 
members thereof. 

No member shall be eligible to serve on such Commission 
for more than three consecutive terms in addition to any 
portion of any unexpired term which may have been served. 

A vacancy shall exist and shall be reported to the Board of 
Supervisors whenever a member fails to attend more than 
three consecutive regular meetings of the Commission, 
without good cause entered on its minutes. (Ord. No. NS-
300.362, § 2, 11-23-82; Ord. No. NS-300.752, 12-12-06)  

Sec. A6-194. Reserved. Editor's note--Ord. No. NS-
300.582, § IV, adopted Dec. 12, 1995, repealed § A6-194, 
which pertained to vacancies.Sec. A6-195. 
Reserved.Editor's note--Section A6-195, requiring a 
periodic report of the Commission, derived from Ord. No. 
NS-300.362, § 2, adopted Nov. 23, 1982, was repealed by § 
5 of Ord. No. NS-300.362.1, adopted Mar. 6, 1984. 



 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Authority 

601 El Camino Real 
Santa Clara, CA  95050 

 
 
March 22, 2016 
Sent via Email 

 
Dear Honorable Mayors, President of the Board of Supervisors, and Director of the Cities Association of 
Santa Clara County,  
 
Thank you for your continued support in allowing us to pursue our mission of providing interoperable 
voice and data communications for the Silicon Valley Public Safety and Public Service Providers. Our 
Board of Directors plays a pivotal role in the decision making and direction of our efforts.  I write this 
letter to you as we are seeking confirmation of new or continuing service from each of your Directors as 
well as a confirmed appointment of an Alternate for each Director. 
 
Article 5 of the JPA Agreement states the term for each Director shall be three (3) years, although they 
may be appointed for a shorter term to fill a vacated seat and may be appointed to multiple successive 
terms.  It further states that “An Alternate shall be appointed for each Director.”  Our project is moving 
very rapidly now, with the funding plan in place and the contract for the completion of the build out for 
the SVRCS signed.  We have had a difficult time meeting Quorum for our Public Meetings and while we 
understand that everyone is busy we have scheduled our meetings for alternating months and we make 
a concerted effort to only hold meetings if we have action items to be addressed. 
 
Article 5.1 further defines that Directors and Alternates shall be appointed by represented Members as 
follows, and that at the time of appointment each shall be an elected official of a Member: 
 

• Two Directors and two Alternates shall represent the County of Santa Clara, currently Sheriff 
Laurie Smith and Supervisor Mike Wasserman serve as the Directors with no recorded 
Alternates. 

 
• Two Directors and two Alternates shall represent the City of San Jose, currently Councilmember 

Pierluigi Oliverio and Councilmember Don Rocha serve as Directors with no recorded 
Alternates. 

 
• One Director shall represent the Central County Agencies of Milpitas, Santa Clara and Sunnyvale, 

currently Jerry Marsalli (Santa Clara) is the Director and Jim Davis (Sunnyvale) is the Alternate. 
 

• One Director shall represent the Northwest County Agencies of Los Altos, Mountain View and 
Palo Alto, currently Megan Satterlee (Los Altos) is the Director with no Alternate recorded. 

 
• One Director shall represent the South County Agencies of Gilroy and Morgan Hill, currently 

Peter Leroe-Munoz (Gilroy) is the Director with no Alternate recorded. 
 



• One Director shall represent the Southwest County Agencies of Campbell, Cupertino, Los Gatos, 
Monte Sereno, and Saratoga, currently Jason Baker (Campbell) is the Director with no Alternate 
recorded. 

 
• One Director shall be appointed by the City Selection Committee for Santa Clara County, this 

Director shall be from a Member Agency who does not have an elected official on the Board at 
the time of appointment, currently the Director is Chris Clark (Mountain View) and the 
Alternate is Burton Craig (Monte Sereno). 

 
It is critical that we confirm the Directors and Alternates for the next term which is July 1, 2016-June 30, 
2019 as we are preparing to seek the addition of two Directors to represent the Valley Transportation 
Authority.  One of these Directors will be an elected official who will need to be selected from one of the 
remaining non represented member agencies.  Further, we will be selecting our Board Chair and Vice 
Chair at our July Meeting. 
 
I ask that you provide me the names of your appointed Director(s) and Alternate(s) before our next 
Board of Directors Meeting which is scheduled for May 26, 2016 so we may ensure a smooth transition 
to the July meeting.   A simple email or letter addressed to me from a representative of the appointing 
authority is sufficient to explain and document an appointment. 
 
I want to take this opportunity to thank you once again for your support of our efforts. Please let me 
know if there is anything that I can do to help facilitate the appointment process for your Director(s) and 
Alternate(s).  
 
Sincerely, 
 

Heather Tannehill-Plamondon 
 
Heather Tannehill-Plamondon, Executive Director  
hplamondon@svria.org  
408-615-5571  
  
 



RD:SSG 
 
 

 

 

JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT FOR THE 

SILICON VALLEY REGIONAL INTEROPERABILITY AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOVEMBER 18, 2009



RD:SSG 
 
 

 
 1 
T-15939\ 592861_3 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project 
JPA Agreement 

THIS JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT FOR THE SILICON VALLEY REGIONAL 
INTEROPERABILITY AUTHORITY (the “Agreement”) is entered into as of this ____ 
day of___________ 20___, (“Effective Date”) by and among the public agencies 
executing this Agreement (collectively, “Members” and individually, “Member”). 

RECITALS 

A. WHEREAS, in 2001, the Cities of Campbell, Cupertino, Gilroy, Los Altos, 
Milpitas, Monte Sereno, Morgan Hill, Mountain View, Palo Alto, Santa Clara, San Jose, 
Saratoga, and Sunnyvale; the Towns of Los Gatos and Los Altos Hills; the South Santa 
Clara County Fire District; the County of Santa Clara; San Jose State University; and 
the Santa Clara Valley Water District (collectively, the “Network Participants”) entered 
into an agreement to exercise their joint contracting and purchasing powers pursuant to 
Government Code Section 6502 (the “Joint Funding Agreement”), so as to jointly hire 
consultants for the conceptual design and implementation strategy for an interoperable 
communications network, to jointly purchase a radio and data communications system 
or network to provide interoperability for the Network Participants, to integrate this 
system or network with other nearby regional public safety communications systems, to 
participate in regional interoperability projects, to jointly fund activities and projects 
related to interoperability; and to jointly apply for grants and funding to facilitate the 
accomplishment of these goals; 

B. WHEREAS, the campaign to accomplish the above goals came to be known as 
the Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project (“SVRIP”);  

C. WHEREAS,  the SVRIP has been very successful but many new projects and 
opportunities have arisen and the joint exercise of powers under the Joint Funding 
Agreement is no longer sufficient to address the expanded opportunities and objectives 
of the SVRIP; 

D. WHEREAS,  the undersigned desire to create an independent joint powers 
authority to implement and operate the SVRIP and other projects, and to formally 
articulate the goals and purposes of the Authority;  

E. WHEREAS, a SVRIP Executive Director, employed by the City of San Jose 
consistent with the Joint Funding Agreement, has been appointed by the SVRIP 
steering committee to assist in the formation and operation of the Authority;  

F. WHEREAS, pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, Title 1, Division 7, 
Chapter 5, of the California Government Code, Government Code Section 6500 et seq., 
two or more public agencies may by agreement jointly exercise any power common to 
the contracting agencies; and 

G. WHEREAS, the Members have determined that the public interest will be served 
by the joint exercise of their common powers through this Agreement and the creation 
of a joint powers authority for the purposes described herein. 

 



RD:SSG 
 
 

 
 2 
T-15939\ 592861_3 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project 
JPA Agreement 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, terms, conditions, and 
covenants contained herein, the Members agree as follows: 

 

ARTICLE 1 – DEFINITIONS 

1. Certain terms used in this Agreement shall be defined as follows:  

1.1.   "Agency" or “Public Agency” shall have the meaning provided in 
Government Code Section 6500.  

1.2.   "Agreement" shall mean this Agreement that establishes the Silicon 
Valley Regional Interoperability Authority.  

1.3.   “Annual Operating Costs” shall mean the day to day expenses of the 
Authority (other than systems maintenance expenses) which shall include 
without limitation, personnel (except systems maintenance personnel), 
overhead, legal and accounting services, and similar costs for the fiscal year; as 
such term may be further defined in the policies of the Authority 

1.4.   “Annual Systems Maintenance Costs” shall mean consulting and 
maintenance services for existing hardware and software; systems maintenance 
personnel costs; system site/facility maintenance; parts, software/firmware, labor 
and equipment for regular maintenance; and noncapital replacements for the 
fiscal year; as such term may be further defined in the policies of the Authority.  

1.5.  "Authority" shall mean the Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability 
Authority.  

1.6.   "Board" shall mean the Board of Directors which is the governing body of 
the Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Authority.  

1.7.   "Central County Agencies" shall include the City of Santa Clara, the City 
of Sunnyvale, and the City of Milpitas. 

1.8.  “Overhead” shall mean the Authority’s ongoing necessary administrative 
costs (such as system site/facility rent, office rent, utilities, office supplies, and 
insurance) which are not separately budgeted as part of a specific project, 
program, or service. 

1.9. "Members" shall mean the public agencies which are signatories to this 
Agreement prior to the Effective Date. Unless otherwise indicated, actions or 
approvals of a Member are deemed to be those of the legislative body of the 
Member. 

1.10. "Multiple Agency Directorship" shall mean any seat on the Board of 
Directors which represents more than one Member.  

1.11. "Northwest County Agencies" shall include the City of Mountain View, 
the City of Palo Alto, the City of Los Altos and the Town of Los Altos Hills. 

1.12. “Smaller Member” shall mean any Member whose population is less 
than 15,000.  

http://www.businessdictionary.com/definition/business-activity.html


RD:SSG 
 
 

 
 3 
T-15939\ 592861_3 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project 
JPA Agreement 

1.13. "South County Agencies" shall include the City of Gilroy and the City of 
Morgan Hill.  

1.14. "Southwest County Agencies" shall include the City of Cupertino, the 
City of Campbell, the City of Saratoga, the Town of Los Gatos and the City of 
Monte Sereno. 

1.15. "Working Committee" shall mean the committee described in Article 6 of 
this Agreement.  

 

ARTICLE 2 – CREATION AND PURPOSES 

2. The Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Authority is created as described in this 
Article. 

2.1.   Creation of Authority and Jurisdiction. Pursuant to the Joint Exercise of 
Powers Act, the Members hereby create the Silicon Valley Regional 
Interoperability Authority, a public entity separate and distinct from each of the 
Members, to exercise the powers common to the Members and as otherwise 
granted by the Joint Exercise of Powers Act. The jurisdiction of the Authority 
shall be all territory within the geographic boundaries of the Members; however 
the Authority may undertake any action outside such geographic boundaries as 
is necessary or incidental to the accomplishment of its purposes. 

2.2.  Purpose of Authority. The purpose of the Authority is to enhance and 
improve communications, data sharing and other technological systems, tools 
and processes for protection of the public and public safety and to facilitate 
related local and regional cooperative efforts.  

2.3.   Purpose of Agreement. The purpose of this Agreement is to create the 
Authority; to facilitate the implementation of the Authority’s projects, systems and 
services; to provide for the Authority’s acquisition of real, personal and intangible 
property, to provide for the Authority’s administration, planning, design, 
financing, regulation, permitting, environmental evaluation, public outreach, 
construction, operation, and maintenance of the Authority’s projects, systems 
and services; and to provide for any necessary or convenient related support 
services. 

 

ARTICLE 3 – POWERS 

3. The Authority shall have all powers necessary or reasonably convenient to carry out 
the purposes herein, subject to the limitations in this Article. 

3.1.   The Authority shall have all powers necessary or reasonably convenient to 
carry out the purposes herein, including, but not limited to, the following powers: 

3.1.1.   To obtain and secure funding from any and all available public and 
private sources including local, state, and federal government, including but 



RD:SSG 
 
 

 
 4 
T-15939\ 592861_3 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project 
JPA Agreement 

not limited to, bond issuances, lease purchase agreements, grants, public 
and private contributions, public and private loans, and other funds;  

3.1.2.   To manage and operate any projects, systems, and services 
transferred or assigned to the Authority and fulfill any existing obligations 
incurred under the Joint Funding Agreement that are transferred or assigned 
to the Authority; 

3.1.3.   To plan, design, finance, acquire, construct, operate, regulate, and 
maintain systems, equipment, facilities, buildings, structures, software, 
databases, and improvements; 

3.1.4.   To lease real, personal and intangible property; 

3.1.5.   To acquire, hold, or dispose of real, personal or intangible property 
by negotiation, dedication or eminent domain;  

3.1.6.   To own, lease, sublease, acquire, operate, maintain and dispose of 
materials, supplies, and equipment of all types including, but not limited to 
intangible property such as radio frequencies; 

3.1.7.   To conduct studies, tests, evaluations, investigations, and similar 
activities; 

3.1.8.   To develop and/or adopt standards and specifications; 

3.1.9.   To obtain permits, rights, licenses and approvals, including FCC 
licenses; 

3.1.10. To enter into agreements; 

3.1.11. To contract for services from Members, including but not limited to 
in-kind services; 

3.1.12. To employ consultants, contractors, and staff and to adopt 
personnel rules and regulations; 

3.1.13. To adopt bylaws, rules and regulations; 

3.1.14. To delegate certain powers; 

3.1.15. To acquire and maintain insurance of all types; 

3.1.16. To accept, hold, invest, manage, and expend monies pursuant to 
the Joint Exercise of Powers Act; 

3.1.17. To work with elected officials and local, regional, state and federal 
agencies, including joint powers agencies and consortia, to pursue funding, 
enter agreements, and otherwise act to carry out the purposes of the 
Authority; 

3.1.18. To incur debts, liabilities or obligations, provided that no debt, 
liability, or obligation shall constitute a debt, liability or obligation of the 
Members, either jointly or severally; 



RD:SSG 
 
 

 
 5 
T-15939\ 592861_3 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project 
JPA Agreement 

3.1.19. To charge for services, programs, and/or system use by means of 
subscriber fees or similar charges; 

3.1.20. Subject to applicable legal authority, to cause assessments, fees or 
charges to be levied in accordance with applicable State and Federal law;  

3.1.21. To issue bonds and sell or lease any type of real or personal 
property for purposes of debt financing; 

3.1.22. To sue and be sued; 

3.1.23. To conduct public outreach and education; 

3.1.24. To participate in pilot and demonstration projects; 

3.1.25. To reimburse Authority officers, employees and officials for 
expenses incurred as permitted by law; and 

3.1.26. To exercise all powers incidental to the foregoing. 

3.1.27. In addition to those powers common to each of the members and 
the powers conferred by the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, the Authority shall 
have those powers that may be conferred upon it by subsequently enacted 
legislation. 

3.2.   Limitation on Eminent Domain Power. The Authority’s power of eminent 
domain shall be exercised to acquire real property only in the manner prescribed 
by the California Code of Civil Procedure, including the requirements of Sections 
1245.230 and 1245.240 of the Code of Civil Procedure (as such statutes and 
requirements may be amended) which provide that prior to the exercise of such 
power the Board adopt, by a 2/3 vote of the entire Board, a resolution finding 
that (1) the public interest and necessity require the proposed project;   (2) the 
proposed project is planned or located in the manner that will be most 
compatible with the greatest public good and the least private injury; and (3) the 
property described in the resolution is necessary for the proposed project. 
Further, the Authority shall not exercise such power in the jurisdiction of a 
municipal or county Member in absence of a resolution approved by a majority 
of the Member’s governing body evidencing the Member’s consent to the 
Authority’s exercise of eminent domain.  

3.3.   No Authority Taxing Power. The Authority shall not exercise any power it 
possesses to impose taxes on the public, although it may receive the proceeds 
of taxes imposed by other entities.  

3.4.   Restriction on Exercise of Powers. Pursuant to Section 6509 of the Joint 
Exercise of Powers Act, the Authority has designated a general law city as the 
Member for determination of the restrictions upon the Authority in exercising the 
common powers under this Agreement and the City of Cupertino shall serve as 
such Member. In the event that the City of Cupertino ceases to be a Member, 
the Board may designate by resolution another general law city Member as the 



RD:SSG 
 
 

 
 6 
T-15939\ 592861_3 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project 
JPA Agreement 

Member for determination of the restrictions upon the Authority in exercising the 
common powers. 

3.5.   Unless expressly provided to the contrary herein, the Authority does not 
intend, by virtue of Section 3.3 or this Agreement, to subject itself to the internal 
policies or ordinances of any Member (e.g., Member purchasing or sunshine 
ordinances). 

ARTICLE 4 – MEMBERSHIP 

4. The Members of the Authority are the public agencies who enter into this Agreement 
prior to the Effective Date. In the event a city or town listed as represented by a 
Multiple Agency Directorship does not enter into this Agreement prior to the Effective 
Date, the city or town will not be a Member and the listed entities in the applicable 
Multiple Agency Directorship will be deemed amended to reflect this fact without 
further action. Admission of a new Member shall not require amendment to this 
Agreement, however, after the Effective Date new Members may be admitted only 
pursuant to the procedures described in Sections 4.1 and 4.2. Members may 
withdraw pursuant to the procedures described in Sections 4.3. 

4.1. A Public Agency may be considered for membership in the Authority after 
the Effective Date, by presenting an adopted resolution of the Public Agency’s 
governing body to the Board which includes a request to become a Member of 
the Authority.  

4.2. The Authority shall accept new Members upon a majority affirmative vote 
of the entire Board, payment of any Board determined fees and charges, 
including a pro-rata share of organization, planning, project, and other costs and 
charges and upon satisfaction of any conditions established by the Board as a 
prerequisite for membership. At the time of admission, the Board shall adopt a 
resolution assigning the new Member to be represented by one of the existing 
Multiple Agency Directorships and amend the listed entities in the applicable 
Multiple Agency Directorship shall be amended to reflect this fact. Each 
proposed Member shall also enter into a membership agreement, upon the date 
of execution of which it shall be bound to the terms of this Agreement as a 
Member.  

4.3. Withdrawal. Any Member may withdraw from this Agreement upon at least 
6 (six) months written notice to the Authority and the Members. Any Director who 
is an elected official of the withdrawing Member and any Working Committee 
member who is an official, officer or employee of the withdrawing Member shall 
be deemed to have resigned as of the date of receipt of the written notice. 

4.3.1. A withdrawing Member shall have no interest or claim in the assets of the 
Authority absent an Authority approved written agreement which contains 
express provisions to the contrary.  

4.3.2. Any withdrawing Member shall be obligated to pay an equitable share, 
consistent with the cost sharing principles herein, of all debts, liabilities and 
obligations of the Authority incurred prior to the effective date of the 



RD:SSG 
 
 

 
 7 
T-15939\ 592861_3 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project 
JPA Agreement 

withdrawal; as such share is determined by the Board, as a condition 
precedent to such withdrawal. 

4.3.3. Provided, however, that the withdrawing Member’s obligations under 
Section 4.3.2 shall not extend to debts, liabilities and obligations of the 
Authority that are secured or otherwise committed pursuant to specific 
project, service, or program agreements (“limited scope agreements”) that 
expressly omit the withdrawing Member. The specific pro-rata share of the 
withdrawing Member of the debts, liabilities and obligations of the Authority 
that are secured or otherwise committed pursuant to a limited scope 
agreement shall be determined by the terms of those agreements and the 
withdrawing Member shall comply with all withdrawal terms of such 
agreement.  

4.3.4. A withdrawing or withdrawn Member’s payment obligation with respect to 
its share of debts, liabilities and obligations shall survive withdrawal of the 
Member and survive termination of this Agreement.  

4.3.5. If a Member who is represented by a Multiple Agency Directorship 
withdraws, the listed entities in the applicable Multiple Agency Directorship 
may be amended to reflect this fact by a resolution of the Board. 

 

ARTICLE 5 – BOARD OF DIRECTORS; ORGANIZATION 

5. The Authority shall be governed by a Board of Directors (the "Board") consisting of 
nine (9) Directors. The term of a Director’s appointment shall be three (3) years 
although Directors may be appointed for a shorter term consistent with the Board’s 
bylaws. Directors may be appointed to multiple successive terms. An alternate shall 
be appointed for each Director. Alternates shall serve as Directors in the absence of 
their respective Directors and shall exercise all rights and privileges thereof. 
Notwithstanding the above, each Director and each alternate for such Director shall 
serve at the pleasure of the Member(s) they represent and may be removed by such 
Member(s) at any time without any right to notice thereof.  

5.1. Directors and alternates shall be appointed by the represented Member(s) 
as follows and, at the time of such appointment and for the duration of such 
appointment, each shall be an elected official of a Member: 

5.1.1. Two Directors shall represent the County of Santa Clara. 

5.1.2. Two Directors shall represent the City of San Jose. 

5.1.3. One Director shall represent the Central County Agencies.  

5.1.4. One Director shall represent the Northwest County Agencies. 

5.1.5. One Director shall represent the South County Agencies.  

5.1.6. One Director shall represent the Southwest County Agencies.  



RD:SSG 
 
 

 
 8 
T-15939\ 592861_3 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project 
JPA Agreement 

5.1.7. One Director shall be appointed by the City Selection Committee 
(as formed pursuant to Government Code Section 50270 et seq.) for Santa 
Clara County. The Director shall be an elected official of a Member who 
does not have an elected official on the Board at the time of appointment. 
The Director appointed in this manner may be removed by the Member that 
he or she serves. 

Each directorship described in Sections 5.1.3 through 5.1.6 shall be a Multiple Agency 
Directorship and an action by a majority of the represented Members shall appoint and 
remove such Directors. If the Director (or his or her Alternate) shall fail to attend 70% of 
the meetings of the Board during the fiscal year, the Directorship shall be deemed 
vacant and the Authority shall send notice of the vacancy to the represented 
Member(s). If a Director shall cease to be an elected official of a Member, his or her 
seat shall be deemed vacant. If the City Selection Committee or the represented 
Members of a Multiple Agency Directorship fail to select a Director within ninety (90) 
days of a vacancy, the Board may appoint an interim Director from the elected officials 
of the represented Members (or of those Members who do not have an elected official 
on the Board in the case of the City Selection Committee’s directorship) to serve until 
the appointment of the new Director is completed.   

5.2. Each member of the Board shall have one vote. A majority of the 
members of the entire Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of 
business. Except where a supermajority is required by statute, this Agreement or 
a resolution of the Board, actions of the Board shall require the affirmative vote 
of a majority of the entire Board (i.e., five (5) affirmative votes). 

5.3.  The Board shall elect annually a Chair from among its membership to 
preside at meetings and shall appoint a Secretary who may, but need not, be a 
Director. The Board may, from time to time, elect such other officers as the 
Board shall deem necessary or convenient to conduct the affairs of the 
Authority.  

5.4. Meetings. The Board shall hold at least two regular meetings each year. 
The Board shall by resolution establish the date, hour and location at which its 
regular meetings shall be held. All meetings of the Board shall be held in 
accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code Section 54950 et 
seq. The Secretary shall cause minutes of all open meetings of the Board to be 
kept and shall cause a copy of the minutes to be forwarded to each Director and 
the Members within thirty (30) days. 

5.5. Bylaws. The Board, at its initial meeting, shall adopt by resolution rules of 
procedure (“bylaws”), not inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement, to 
govern the conduct of its meetings. Such rules of procedure shall be in 
accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act. Recommendations for amendments to 
the bylaws will be developed by Working Committee and forwarded to Board for 
consideration. 



RD:SSG 
 
 

 
 9 
T-15939\ 592861_3 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project 
JPA Agreement 

5.6. Political Reform Act Compliance. Directors of the Board, members of the 
Working Committee and designated officials and employees shall comply with 
the Political Reform Act of 1974, Government Code Section 81000 et seq. 

5.7. Executive Director. The Executive Director shall report to and take 
direction from the Board and shall have such authority as is specified by 
resolution of the Board. Where authorized by the Working Committee, the 
Executive Director may sign agreements, applications and other documents on 
behalf of the Authority. The Executive Director shall be designated as a 
Government Code Section 6505.1 officer who has charge of, handles, and has 
access to, the Authority's property and shall file with the Authority an official 
bond in the amount set by the Board. The premiums for such bond may be paid 
or reimbursed by the Authority.  

5.7.1. The SVRIP Executive Director shall serve as the Authority’s 
Executive Director during the term of the existing employment agreement 
between the City of San Jose and the SVRIP Executive Director or until an 
Executive Director is selected pursuant to Section 6.7. 

5.8. General Counsel. The Authority shall have a General Counsel. The 
General Counsel shall report to and take direction from the Board. The Board 
may designate one of the Authority's or a Member’s employees as General 
Counsel or contract for such legal services with an independent contractor. 

5.9. Policies. The Board may, upon the recommendation of the Working 
Committee, adopt policies regarding personnel, conflicts of interest and other 
matters that are necessary or convenient for the efficient operation of the 
Authority.   

5.10. In addition to such duties as may be necessary or desirable for the 
implementation of this Agreement, the Board shall have the duty to do the 
following within the times specified or, if no time is specified, within a reasonable 
time: 

5.10.1. The Board shall hold an initial Board meeting within sixty (60) days 
of the Effective Date, and adopt an initial budget, work plan, initial policies, 
and bylaws with or without a Working Committee recommendation; 

5.10.2. The Board shall adopt a work plan for each fiscal year;  

5.10.3. The Board shall select a General Counsel;  

5.10.4. The Board shall direct the Working Committee to evaluate the need 
for such insurance protection as is necessary to protect the interests of the 
Authority and its Members, and acquire and maintain if necessary, liability, 
errors and omissions, property and/or other insurance. 

 



RD:SSG 
 
 

 
 10 
T-15939\ 592861_3 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project 
JPA Agreement 

ARTICLE 6 – WORKING COMMITTEE 

6. Pursuant to Government Code Section 6508, the Authority delegates certain powers 
related to program development, policy formulation and program implementation to 
the Working Committee described herein. Specifically, the Working Committee shall 
have the composition, powers and duties described in this Article and the implied 
powers necessary therefor.  

6.1. The Working Committee shall ensure that a budget and work plan are 
timely prepared and by March 31 of each year, shall review and recommend the 
budget and work plan to the Board for approval. Copies of the recommended 
budget and work plan shall be promptly sent to the Members and the Directors. 
The budget shall indicate the anticipated sources of revenues and the 
anticipated uses of such revenues. The work plan shall outline the activities and 
priorities of the Authority for the following year. 

6.2. The Working Committee may apply for and accept all grants and sub-
grants that are consistent with the approved work plan, provided that either (a) 
the amount of matching funds required, if any, does not exceed that threshold 
provided in the approved work plan and budget, or (b) a Member or other entity 
volunteers to provide the matching funds without a guarantee of reimbursement.  

6.3. The Working Committee may take action to implement or modify any 
projects, programs or services, provided the projects, programs or services are 
consistent with the budget and the parameters and thresholds in the work plan. 
Any projects, programs and services that are not consistent with the work plan 
and budget shall be reviewed by the Working Committee and recommended to 
the Board for approval.  

6.4. The Working Committee shall let for bid, if required, and award all 
contracts consistent with the approved work plan, provided that the amount of 
funds required, if any, does not exceed that threshold provided in the approved 
work plan and budget. The Working Committee may approve any contract 
amendment, provided that the additional costs to the Authority for such 
amendment do not exceed the threshold provided in the Authority’s contracting 
policy and sufficient funds are available in the approved budget. 

6.5. The Working Committee shall approve all agreements with Members and 
other public agencies and all other contracts that are consistent with applicable 
law and the approved work plan.  

6.6. The Working Committee shall recommend a conflict of interest policy and 
personnel rules, when necessary, and any amendments of those policies to the 
Board for approval.  

6.7. The Working Committee shall adopt policies regarding purchasing and 
consultants. In addition, the Working Committee may adopt policies on other 
issues that are necessary or convenient for the efficient operation of the 
Authority.  



RD:SSG 
 
 

 
 11 
T-15939\ 592861_3 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project 
JPA Agreement 

6.8. The Working Committee shall recommend an Executive Director, subject 
to the Board’s approval and approval of the contract between the Authority and 
Executive Director. 

6.9. The Working Committee shall have eleven (11) Committee Members, 
unless such number is increased by a resolution adopted by an affirmative vote 
of 2/3 of the entire Board. Each Committee Member shall serve at the pleasure 
of the appointing entity identified in Section 6.9.1 and may be removed at any 
time by that appointing entity without notice. Each Committee Member must be 
an official, officer, or employee of a Member, but no single Member may have 
more than three (3) Working Committee Members serving at one time. A 
Committee Member may also be removed by the Member who he or she serves 
upon notice to the Authority. If a Committee Member shall fail to attend 70% of 
the meetings of the Working Committee during the fiscal year, his or her seat 
shall be deemed vacant and the Authority shall send notice of the vacancy to the 
appointing entity. If a Committee Member shall cease to be an official, officer, or 
employee of a Member, his or her seat shall be deemed vacant. If an appointing 
entity shall fail to appoint a Committee Member within ninety (90) days of a 
vacancy, the Working Committee may, by majority vote, appoint an interim 
Committee Member from the officials, officers, or employees of the Members to 
serve until the appointment of the new Committee Member is completed. 

6.9.1. Working Committee Members shall be appointed by the following 
entities (or successor entities approved pursuant to a resolution of the 
Working Committee) as follows: 

6.9.1.1. Two City Managers appointed by the Santa Clara 
County/City Managers Association.  

6.9.1.2. One fire chief appointed by the Santa Clara County Fire 
Chiefs Association. 

6.9.1.3. One police chief appointed by the Santa Clara County Police 
Chiefs Association. 

6.9.1.4. The Santa Clara County Executive or his or her designee. 

6.9.1.5. Two members appointed by the San Jose City Manager. 

6.9.1.6. The Director of Communications for Santa Clara County or 
his or her designee. 

6.9.1.7. One communications manager appointed by the Public 
Safety Communications Managers Association (of Santa Clara County).  

6.9.1.8.  Two at-large members appointed by the Working 
Committee. 

6.9.2. Meetings of the Working Committee shall be conducted in 
compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act. The Working Committee may 



RD:SSG 
 
 

 
 12 
T-15939\ 592861_3 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project 
JPA Agreement 

adopt by resolution rules of procedure, not inconsistent with the provisions 
of this Agreement, to govern the conduct of its meetings.  

6.9.3. A majority of the Committee Members shall constitute a quorum for 
the transaction of business and actions of the Working Committee shall 
require the affirmative vote of a majority of the entire Working Committee 
(i.e., as of the Effective Date, six (6) Committee Members). 

 

ARTICLE 7 – FISCAL MATTERS AND FUNDING 

7. The Authority shall comply with the fiscal and recordkeeping requirements of the 
Joint Exercise of Powers Act and shall take such other actions as necessary or 
desirable to address the fiscal, funding and budgeting needs of the Authority. 

7.1. Treasurer and Auditor. The Treasurer and Auditor/Controller of Santa 
Clara County, respectively, are designated the Treasurer and Auditor of the 
Authority with the powers, duties, and responsibilities specified in the Joint 
Exercise of Powers Act, including, without limitation, Sections 6505 and 6505.5 
thereof; provided however, the Board may revoke this designation by adopting a 
resolution appointing one or more of the Authority's or a Member’s officers or 
employees to either or both of the positions of Treasurer or Auditor as provided 
in Sections 6505.6 of the Joint Exercise of  Powers Act. 

7.2. Accounts and Reports. The Board shall establish and maintain such funds 
and accounts as may be required by generally accepted public accounting 
practice. The books and records of the Authority shall be open to inspection at 
all reasonable times to the Members and their respective representatives. The 
accounts shall be prepared and maintained by the Treasurer and/or Auditor of 
the Authority. The Auditor shall, within one hundred twenty (120) days after the 
close of each fiscal year, cause an independent audit of all financial activities for 
such fiscal year to be prepared in accordance with Government Code Section 
6505. The Authority shall promptly deliver copies of the audit report to each 
Director and the Members. 

7.3. Budget. The Board shall adopt an initial budget consistent with Section 
5.10 and adopt subsequent budgets no later than April 30th of each year 
thereafter. Adoption of the budget shall require an affirmative vote of 2/3 of the 
entire Board.  

7.4. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Authority shall be the period from July 
1st of each year to and including the following June 30th. 

7.5. Debts, Liabilities and Obligations. The debts, liabilities, and obligations of 
the Authority shall not constitute debts, liabilities, or obligations of the Members, 
either jointly or severally. 

7.6. Initial Contribution for Annual Operating Costs. Within thirty (30) days of 
the Effective Date, each Member except the City of Los Altos Hills and the City 
of Monte Sereno shall make an initial operating costs contribution of $13,157 to 



RD:SSG 
 
 

 
 13 
T-15939\ 592861_3 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project 
JPA Agreement 

the Authority. The City of Los Altos Hills and the City of Monte Sereno shall each 
make an initial operating costs contribution of $8,000. Notwithstanding the 
above, any Member who has already contributed the identified amount pursuant 
to the Joint Funding Agreement for the 2009-2010 fiscal year need not make 
such initial operating costs contribution. 

7.7. Initial Contribution for Annual Maintenance Costs. Within thirty (30) days 
of the Effective Date, each Member shall make an initial systems maintenance 
contribution of the amount required pursuant to the City Manager’s Association 
approved maintenance assessment formula.  

7.7.1. The City Managers’ Association approved maintenance 
assessment formula provides the following population allocation 
percentages: Campbell - 2.21%, Cupertino - 3.02% , Gilroy - 2.60%, Los 
Altos - 1.60%, Los Altos Hills - 0.48%, Los Gatos - 1.67%, Milpitas – 3.76%, 
Monte Sereno - 0.20% , Morgan Hill - 2.02%, Mountain View – 4.16%, Palo 
Alto – 3.50% , San Jose – 53.47%, Santa Clara – 6.12%, Saratoga - 1.76%, 
and Sunnyvale – 7.66%; and unincorporated Santa Clara County - 5.78%. 

7.7.2. The following contributions are due based on the above 
percentages: Campbell - $3,315, Cupertino - $4,530, Gilroy - $3,900, Los 
Altos - $2,400, Los Altos Hills - $720, Los Gatos - $2,505, Milpitas – $5,640, 
Monte Sereno - $300, Morgan Hill - $3,030, Mountain View – $6,240, Palo 
Alto – $5,250 , San Jose – $80,205, Santa Clara – $9,180, Saratoga - 
$2,640, and Sunnyvale – $11,490, and unincorporated Santa Clara County - 
$8,670. 

7.7.3. Notwithstanding the above, any Member who has already 
contributed the identified amount pursuant to the Joint Funding Agreement 
for the 2009-2010 fiscal year need not make such initial maintenance 
contribution. 

7.8. Annual Operating Costs. Each year, the Working Committee shall propose 
projected Annual Operating Costs, which projected costs shall be adopted by 
the Board prior to or during approval of the budget.  

7.8.1. Population Share. Half of the adopted Annual Operating Costs shall be 
allocated to the Members based on their respective population (the 
“Population Share”). Each Member shall pay a portion of the Population 
Share which shall be determined based on that Member’s population. The 
Population Share, each Member’s share of the Population Share shall be 
determined pursuant to the funding policy adopted by the Board at its initial 
meeting, as may be amended. The funding policy shall specify the accepted 
method for calculating each Member’s population (e.g., census data). 

7.8.2. Membership Share. Half of the adopted Annual Operating Costs shall be 
allocated to the Members based on the principle that Members share these 
costs equally, except that the Smaller Members shall pay 60% of a Full 
Share (the “Membership Share”). Each Member except the Smaller 



RD:SSG 
 
 

 
 14 
T-15939\ 592861_3 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project 
JPA Agreement 

Members shall pay an equal full share of the adopted Annual Operating 
Costs (Full Share”) the Smaller Members shall pay 60% of a Full Share. The 
total of all shares shall be 100% of the Membership Share. A Full Share 
shall be calculated according to the formula implementing the above 
principle contained in the funding policy adopted by the Board at its initial 
meeting, as may be amended. 

7.9. Annual Systems Maintenance Costs. Each year, the Working Committee 
shall propose projected Annual Systems Maintenance Costs, which projected 
costs shall be approved by the Board prior to or during approval of the budget.  

7.9.1. Each Member shall pay a share of the adopted Annual Systems 
Maintenance Costs based on the principle that Members shall share 
systems maintenance costs based on system and service usage and that 
until sufficient data is available regarding Member usage, Member 
population data is an acceptable proxy for usage. 

7.9.2. Each Member’s share of the adopted Annual Systems Maintenance 
Costs shall be calculated according to the formula implementing the 
principles in Section 7.9.1 contained in the funding policy adopted by the 
Board at its initial meeting, as may be amended. 

7.10. Other Projects, Programs and Services. In the event that a project, 
program, service, or reserve fund is approved which has costs that are not 
Annual Operating Costs or the Annual Systems Maintenance Costs, the Working 
Committee shall either (a) develop a proposed cost allocation formula for the 
non-overhead costs based on the principle that costs shall be assessed to 
Members based on usage but, if usage data or projected usage data is not 
available, until sufficient data is available, Member population and entity type 
data are acceptable proxies for usage or (b) conduct or obtain a cost allocation 
study which considers usage, overhead, and other reasonable cost factors. The 
Board shall approve any such proposed cost allocation. 

7.11. Limited Scope Agreements. Where a project or program is intentionally 
designed to be limited in scope such that it only provides benefits to particular 
Members, the Authority may enter into specific project or program agreements 
that provide for cost sharing by the particular affected Members; provided 
however, both the Board and Working Committee must approve such 
agreements.  

7.12. Contributions on Behalf of Members. Special Districts or other parties may 
tender to the Authority those contributions due from a Member on that Member’s 
behalf. 

 

ARTICLE 8 –GENERAL PROVISIONS 

8. The following general provisions apply to this Agreement. 



RD:SSG 
 
 

 
 15 
T-15939\ 592861_3 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project 
JPA Agreement 

8.1. Term and Termination. This Agreement shall be effective as of the 
Effective Date. It shall remain in effect until the purposes of the Authority are fully 
accomplished, or until terminated by the vote of a majority of the governing bodies of 
the Members; provided, however, that this Agreement may not be terminated, until 
(a) all bonds or other instruments of indebtedness issued by the Authority and the 
interest thereon, if any, have been paid in full or provision has been made for 
payment in full and (b) all outstanding obligations and liabilities of the Authority have 
been paid in full or provision has been made for payment in full, except as set forth 
in Section 8.2. 

8.2. Disposition of Property upon Termination. In the event of termination of 
the Authority pursuant to Section 8.1 herein and where there will be a successor 
public entity which will carry on the functions of the Authority and assume its assets 
and liabilities, the assets of the Authority shall be transferred to the successor public 
entity. If upon termination pursuant to Section 8.1, there is no successor public entity 
which will carry on the functions of the Authority and assume its assets, the assets 
shall be returned to the Members as follows: (a) all real property and any 
improvements thereon shall be conveyed to the Member which owned the property 
prior to the formation of the Authority, and (b) all other assets shall be divided among 
the Members in proportion to their respective contributions during the term of this 
Agreement. If upon termination pursuant to Section 8.1, there is a successor public 
entity which will carry on some of the functions of the Authority and assume some of 
the assets, the Authority's Board shall allocate the assets between the successor 
public entity and the Members. 

8.3. Indemnification. To the fullest extent allowed by law, the Authority shall 
defend, indemnify, and save harmless the Members and their governing bodies, 
officers, agents, and employees from all claims, losses, damages, costs, injury, and 
liability of every kind, nature, and description directly or indirectly arising from the 
performance of any of the activities of the Authority or the activities undertaken 
pursuant to this Agreement.  

8.4. Liability of Board, Officers and Employees. The Directors, Working 
Committee Members, officers, and employees of the Authority shall use ordinary 
care and reasonable diligence in the exercise of their powers, and in the 
performance of their duties pursuant to this Agreement. They shall not be liable to 
the Members for any mistake of judgment or other action made, taken, or omitted by 
them in good faith, nor for any action made, taken, or omitted by any agent, 
employee, or independent contractor selected with reasonable care, nor for loss 
incurred through the investment of the Authority's funds, or failure to invest the 
same. 

8.5. To the extent authorized by California law, no Director, Working 
Committee Member, officer, or employee of the Authority shall be responsible for 
any action made, taken, or omitted, by any other Director, Working Committee 
Member, officer, or employee. No Director, Working Committee Member, officer, or 
employee of the Authority shall be required to give a bond or other security to 



RD:SSG 
 
 

 
 16 
T-15939\ 592861_3 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project 
JPA Agreement 

guarantee the faithful performance of his or her duties pursuant to this Agreement, 
except as required herein pursuant to Government Code Section 6505.1. The funds 
of the Authority shall be used to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Authority 
and each Director, Working Committee Member, officer, or employee of the 
Authority for actions taken in good faith and within the scope of his or her authority. 
Nothing herein shall limit the right of the Authority to purchase insurance to provide 
coverage for the foregoing indemnity. 

8.6. Successors: Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall 
inure to the benefit of the successors of the Members. No Member may assign any 
rights or obligations hereunder without the unanimous consent of the governing 
bodies of the other Members; provided, further, that no such assignment may be 
made if it would materially and adversely affect (a) the rating of bonds issued by the 
Authority, or (b) bondholders holding such bonds. 

8.7. Amendments. This Agreement may be amended only upon approval of all 
the governing bodies of the Members. So long as any bonds of the Authority are 
outstanding and unpaid, or funds are not otherwise set aside for the payment or 
redemption thereof in accordance with the terms of such bonds and the 
documentation relating thereto, this Agreement shall not be amended, modified or 
otherwise revised, changed or rescinded, if, in the judgment of the Board, such 
action would (a) materially and adversely affect (1) the rating of bonds issued by the 
Authority, or (2) bondholders holding such bonds, or (b) limit or reduce the 
obligations of the Members to make, in the aggregate, the payments which are for 
the benefit of the owners of such bonds. 

8.8. No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is intended solely for the 
benefit of the Authority and its Members. No third party shall be deemed a 
beneficiary of this Agreement or have any rights hereunder against the Authority or 
its Members. 

8.9. Dispute Resolution. In the event that any party to this Agreement should at 
any time claim that another party (or parties) has breached or is breaching this 
Agreement, the complaining party shall file with the governing body of claimed 
breaching party, and with the Authority, a written claim of said breach, describing the 
alleged breach and otherwise giving full information respecting the same. The Board 
shall thereupon, at a reasonable time and place, specified by it, give each of these 
parties to the dispute an opportunity to be heard on the matter, and shall, upon 
conclusion of said hearing, give the Members a full report of its findings and 
recommendations. Said report, findings and recommendations shall be deemed 
advisory only, shall not in any way bind any of the parties to the dispute, and shall 
not be deemed to establish any facts, either presumptively or finally. Upon receipt of 
said report and recommendations, if any party to the dispute should be dissatisfied 
with or disagree with the same, that party shall provide written notice to the other 
parties within ten (10) business days, and the parties to the dispute or their 
representatives shall meet at a reasonable time and place to be determined by 
them, for the purpose of resolving their differences. No action for breach of this 



RD:SSG 
 
 

 
 17 
T-15939\ 592861_3 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project 
JPA Agreement 

Agreement, and no action for any legal relief because of any such breach or alleged 
breach of this Agreement shall be filed or commenced by any party unless and until 
such party has first given to the other parties a reasonable time, after the parties to 
the dispute have met to resolve their differences, within which to cure any breach or 
alleged breach.  

8.10. Notices. Any notices to Members required by this Agreement shall be 
delivered or mailed, U.S. first class, postage prepaid, addressed to the principal 
office of the respective Members. Notices under this Agreement shall be deemed 
given and received at the earlier of actual receipt, or the second business day 
following deposit in the United States mail, as required above. Any Member may 
amend its address for notice by notifying the other Members pursuant to this 
Section. 

8.11. Severability. Should any part, term, or provision of this Agreement be 
decided by the courts to be illegal or in conflict with any law of the State of California, 
or otherwise be rendered unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the remaining 
portions or provisions shall not be affected thereby. 

8.12. Liberal Construction. The provisions of this Agreement shall be liberally 
construed as necessary or reasonably convenient to achieve the purposes of the 
Authority. 

8.13. Headings. The headings used in this Agreement are for convenience only 
and have no effect on the content, construction, or interpretation of the Agreement. 

8.14. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, and by different parties in separate counterparts, each of which, when 
executed and delivered, shall be deemed to be an original and all of which 
counterparts taken together shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

8.15. Non-Waiver. No waiver of the breach or default of any of the covenants, 
agreements, restrictions, or conditions of this Agreement by any Member shall be 
construed to be a waiver of any succeeding breach of the same or other covenants, 
agreements, restrictions, or conditions of this Agreement. No delay or omission of 
exercising any right, power or remedy in the event of breach or default shall be 
construed as a waiver thereof, or acquiescence therein, or be construed as a waiver 
of a variation of any of the terms of this Agreement or any applicable agreement. 

8.16. Agreement Complete. The foregoing constitutes the full and complete 
Agreement of the parties. There are no oral understandings or agreements not set 
forth in writing above. Any such agreements merge into this Agreement. 

 
 

This document continues on the following page. 



RD:SSG 
 
 

 
 18 
T-15939\ 592861_3 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project 
JPA Agreement 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed 
by their duly authorized representatives. 

 
City of Campbell 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 
City of Cupertino 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 
City of Gilroy 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 
City of Los Altos 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
Town of Los Altos Hills 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 

Approved as to form: 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 



RD:SSG 
 
 

 
 19 
T-15939\ 592861_3 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project 
JPA Agreement 

Town of Los Gatos 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 
City of Milpitas 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 
City of Monte Sereno 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 
City of Morgan Hill 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 
City of Mountain View 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 

Approved as to form: 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 



RD:SSG 
 
 

 
 20 
T-15939\ 592861_3 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project 
JPA Agreement 

City of Palo Alto 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 
City of San Jose 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 
City of Santa Clara 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 
County of Santa Clara 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 
City of Saratoga 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 

Approved as to form: 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 
 



RD:SSG 
 
 

 
 21 
T-15939\ 592861_3 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project 
JPA Agreement 

 
City of Sunnyvale 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved as to form: 
 
By: _______________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ 
 
Title: _______________________ 



RD:SSG 
 
 

 
 22 
T-15939\ 592861_3 
Silicon Valley Regional Interoperability Project 
JPA Agreement 

 



Jim Davis 
Council Member
City of Sunnyvale

424 Southwood Ave. 
Sunnyvale, Ca. 94086

May 18, 2016

Raania Mohsen
Cities Association of Santa Clara County
P.O. Box 1079
Los Gatos, Ca. 95031

Ref:   Re-Appointment to ABAG Executive Board

Dear Ms. Mohsen

I am writing today to express my interest in reappointment to the Executive Board of the 
Association of  Bay Area Government (ABAG).  This is a very important time in the 
history of ABAG.  There is a strong push by the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC) to absorb portions of ABAG.  This will put ABAG in a very tenuous 
position.  As a member of the Executive Board I have made sure that the voice of the 
Cities Association in Santa Clara County is heard.  It is my sincere hope that the Cities 
Association will allow me to see the merger of ABAG and MTC to it's ultimate 
conclusion.

Thank you very much for your consideration.

Yours truly,

Jim Davis
Council Member 
City of Sunnyvale








	June 9, 2016 CSC Agenda
	Draft CSC Minutes April 14, 2016
	ABAG Bylaws Revised 042309
	AIRPORT LAND USE COMMISSION Ordinance-Job Description
	SVRIA letter for directors_alternates 3-22-16[2]
	SVRIA JPA 2010 2
	ABAG Re-Appointment Letter May 18, 2016_Jim Davis
	ABAG Appointment_Greg Scharff
	Chris Clark_May2016_LetterOfInterest_ABAGExecAlternate
	ALUC Appointment_Glenn Hendricks

